
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
BWRDD ADFYWIO A DATBLYGU CYNALIADWY’R CABINET 

 
Yn syth Yn dilyn y Pwyllgor Craffu ar 

 DYDD GWENER, 22 HYDREF 2021 
 

O BELL DRWY TEAMS 
 

 
 
 

Rhan 1 
 

1.  Penodi Cadeirydd   
 

2.  Croeso a galw’r rhestr   
 

3.  Cyhoeddiadau'r Cadeirydd   
 

4.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 

5.  Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 8) 

 
6.  Grant Eiddo Masnachol: 23 Maes yr Eglwys, Castell-nedd SA11 

3LL  (Tudalennau 9 - 22) 
 

7.  Cymorth Grant COVID-19 ar gyfer Busnesau Lleol o fis Mawrth 
2020 i'r presennol  (Tudalennau 23 - 54) 
 

8.  Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol 2019/2020 - Chwarter 1 (1 
Ebrill 2021 i 30 Mehefin 2021)  (Tudalennau 55 - 66) 

 
9.  Blaenraglen Waith 2021/2022  (Tudalennau 67 - 68) 

 
10.  Eitemau brys   

Unrhyw eitemau brys (boed yn gyhoeddus neu wedi'u heithrio) yn ôl 
disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Offeryn Statudol 2001 rhif 2290 (fel y'i 

diwygiwyd). 



 
11.  Mynediad i gyfarfodydd   

Penderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r eitemau canlynol yn unol â Rheoliad 

4(3) a (5) Offeryn Statudol 2001 rhif 2290 a'r paragraffau eithriedig 
perthnasol o Ran 4 Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 

 
Rhan 2 
 

12.  Y Diweddaraf am Brosiect Twnnel y Rhondda  (Tudalennau 69 - 
178) 
 

13.  Cynnig arfaethedig i waredu tir datblygu a adwaenir fel Llain 1, Nant 
y Cafn, Dulais Road, Blaendulais  (Tudalennau 179 - 190) 

 
14.  Cynnig i gwblhau gwaith heb ei orffen yn YGG Pontardawe  

(Tudalennau 191 - 202) 
 

15.  Cynnig arfaethedig i gaffael Tir a Garej Ddomestig ar gyffordd yr 
A48 â Stryd y D?r, Margam ar gyfer y cynllun llwybr troed/llwybr 
beicio arfaethedig sy'n cysylltu Eglwys Nunydd a Pharc Dewi Sant, 
Margam  (Tudalennau 203 - 214) 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
 

 
Canolfan Ddinesig,  
Port Talbot 
 DYDD GWENER, 22 HYDREF 2021 
 
 
Aelodau’r Cabinet:  
 
Cynghowyr: 
 

L.Jones a/ac A.Wingrave 
 

 
Nodiadau:  
 
 (1) Os nad yw unrhyw aelod o Fwrdd y Cabinet yn gallu bad yn 

bresennol, gall unrhyw aelod arall o’r Cabinet gyflenwi fel aelod 
etholiadol ar y pwyllgor. Gofynnir i’r aelodau wneud y trefniadau hyn 
yn uniongyrchol ac yna I hysbysu is adran y pwyllgor..   



 
(2) Ystyrir barn y Pwyllgor Craffu blaenorol wrth wneud penderfyniadau 

(proses craffu cyn penderfynu)  
 



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



- 1 - 
 

170921 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD 

 
17 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
REGENERATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CABINET 

BOARD 
 

 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillors: 
 

L.Jones and A.Wingrave (Chairperson) 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
 
C.Millis, S.Brennan, C.Jones, N.Headon and C.Plowman 
 
Scrutiny Invitees: 
 
Councillors:  S.K.Hunt (Chair) and R.Taylor (Vice Chair) 
 
 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
Agreed that Councillor A.Wingrave be appointed Chairperson for the 
meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Decision: 
 
That the minutes of the 30 July 2021, be approved. 
 
 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda5



- 2 - 
 

170921 

4. EXTENSION OF THE CURRENT SERVICE PROVIDED BY THE 
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONERS OFFICE FOR THE RAPID 
ACCESS PRESCRIBING SERVICE - WESTERN BAY AREA 
PLANNING BOARD  
 
Decision:  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

5. LEASE OF 5-6 LONDON ROAD, NEATH TO THE OFFICE OF THE 
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER  
 
Decision: 
 
That having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening 
Assessment the Head of Property and Regeneration in consultation with 
the Head of Education Development be granted delegated authority to 
negotiate a lease of 5-6 London Road, Neath with the Police and Crime 
Commissioner until 31st March 2024 with an option to terminate annually 
to enable the continued delivery of drug/substance misuse services.  
 
Reason for Decision: 
 

To regularise the existing use and occupation to both protect the 
Councils legal position and comply with grant conditions.  
 
Implementation of Decision:  
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
 

6. RURAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2014 - 2020  
 
Decision:  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

7. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022  
 
Decision: 
 
That the Forward Work Programme 2021/2022 be noted. 

Tudalen6



- 3 - 
 

170921 

 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



  

 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

 
22

nd
 October 2021 

 

Report of the Head of Property and Regeneration  
– S. Brennan 

 
Matter for Decision, 
 
Wards Affected: Neath North 
  
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY GRANT: 23 CHURCH PLACE, NEATH, 
SA11 3LL 
 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To obtain authority under the Commercial Property Grant scheme, to 
grant aid external improvement works to the commercial property 
named above. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The proposal is to part fund improvements to the external 
appearance of the above property, currently used as offices for the 
tenant “Roger Byers and Co. Limited” Chartered, Certified Accountants 
and Registered Auditors, that would physically enhance the character 
of Church Place and the Neath Conservation Area and support it’s 
preservation in to the future. 
 

Tudalen9

Eitem yr Agenda6



It is proposed to re-render the Old Market Street and side elevations 
of the building. The existing rendering is in poor condition and has 
crumbled away, falling to the street and causing a safety hazard to 
pedestrians. Though some repair work has been carried out the rest 
of the render is unsafe so needs to be replaced.  
 
The visual appearance of the building will be significantly improved by 
the replacement of the render, preserving the appearance and 
function of this historic building within Church Place, which lies at the 
heart of the Neath Conservation Area. 
 
This work will improve the quality of the built environment to attract 
further economic investment to the area while safeguarding this 
historic asset supply of employment floor space in to the future. 
 
Background: 
 
Historically the Commercial Property Grant initiative has been part 
funded by the Authority under the provisions of the Local Government 
Act 2000, with provision made within the Neath Port Talbot 
Regeneration Capital Programme for borough-wide projects that 
target specific commercial centres, Communities First areas and 
Neighbourhood Renewal Areas. 

 
Provision of £40,000 has been made available for Commercial 
Property Grant schemes within the 2020/21 Regeneration Capital 
Programme. 
 
Conditions applicable to the following project will be issued in 
accordance with the agreed terms for the scheme.   
 
PROPOSAL  
 
Property Address:   23 Church Place, Neath, SA11 3LL 
 

Tudalen10



 
 
  

Tudalen11



Brief Description of works: 
 
Church Place frontage 

 

Tudalen12



 
Side elevation (showing repair work) 
 

 

Tudalen13



 
Old Market Street elevation 
 

 

Tudalen14



 

 The property is currently in use as offices for “Roger Byers and 
Co. Limited” Chartered, Certified Accountants and Registered 
Auditors. 

 These four storey former Government Offices are rendered to the 
side and Old Market Street elevations. The render is in a poor 
condition, is cracking and has fallen away at the top of the side 
elevation which has caused it to fall to the street and become a 
safety hazard to pedestrians 

 It is proposed to re-render the Old Market Street and side 
elevations of the building. Though some repair work has been 
carried out, the rest of the render is unsafe so it all needs to be 
replaced. New render will improve the energy efficiency of the 
building 

 Total Project Cost (inc eligible works & fees): £23,346 (ex 
VAT)         

Proposed Grant Offer (50% intervention rate): £ 11,673 
 
Financial Impacts:  
 
Grant approval, subject to this report = £11,673 

 
There is sufficient allocation within the Regeneration Capital 
Programme from which to fund this project. 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  

Tudalen15



 
The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth 
assessment is not required.  A summary is included below. 
 
In line with the Neath Port Talbot EIA screening form guidance we 
have determined that a full EIA is not relevant.   
 
The end users of the building will mostly be the employees of Roger 
Byers and Co. Limited. The general public will only have need to 
enter the building if they require the financial services provided by the 
applicant 
 
Due to the small size of the building the proposed scheme will have a 
low impact on the general public of the County Borough. The 
proposed work will not impact the accessibility of the development. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
 
No implications 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
No implications 
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
The Commercial Property Grant initiative has been part funded by the 
Authority under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 
 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
Risks associated with implementing the proposed 
recommendations: 
 
The Council will not be responsible for any aspect of control of the 
Works (including for example, design, related investigations, 

Tudalen16



implementation and supervision). The Applicant alone is responsible 
for everything relating to the Works, including all health and safety 
matters and for any financial losses. The Council has no legal 
responsibility for such matters, even if they require approval under 
the conditions in this manual or Grant Offer Letter. 
 
If the project fails to complete, or does not complete in accordance 
with the grant terms and conditions, the grant money cannot be 
claimed. If the project slips over to the next financial year then it is 
possible that there will not be sufficient funds and the claim process 
will be complicated. 
 
Risks associated with failing to implement the proposed 
recommendations: 
 
If the grant is not approved the proposed refurbishment will not be 
carried out at that time and the locality will not benefit from the 
resulting regeneration impacts. 
 
Consultation: 
 
There is no requirement for external consultation on this item 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment and a 
description of the recommendation, it is recommended that the grant 
is approved. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision:  
 
To implement the provisions of the Commercial Property Grant 
scheme in accordance with the criteria and terms of administration of 
the grant, in order to contribute to the regeneration of Neath town 
centre. 
 

Tudalen17



 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period 

 
Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 - IIA 
 

List of Background Papers: 
 
First Stage Risk Management Impact Assessment 
 
Officer Contact: 
 
Name:  Nicola Jane Bulcraig 
Designation: Strategic Development Officer 
Email:  n.bulcraig@npt.gov.uk  
Direct dial:  (01639) 686683 
 

Tudalen18

mailto:n.bulcraig@npt.gov.uk


1 

 

Impact Assessment - First Stage  
 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: 

 

Commercial Property Grant to part fund external improvements to “Roger Byers and Co. Limited” Chartered, Certified 

Accountants and Registered Auditors offices at 23 Church Place, Neath. External improvements to involve the re-rendering 
of the side and Old Market Street elevations of this three storey, end-of-terrace, former Government Offices. The render is 
in a poor condition, is cracking and has fallen away at the top of the side elevation which has caused it to fall to the street 

and become a safety hazard to pedestrians. Though some repair work has been carried out, the rest of the render is unsafe 
and it all needs to be replaced. New render will improve the energy efficiency of the building. 

Service Area:   Property & Regeneration 

Directorate:       Environment 

 

2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users  X 

Staff  X 

Wider community X  

Internal administrative process only   X 

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age   X    Proposal is to improve the external appearance of 
building only. This benefits users of Neath town centre, 
as well as the people that use the building. 

Disability   X    As above 

T
udalen19



2 

 

Gender Reassignment  X    As above 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  X    As above 

Pregnancy/Maternity  X    As above 

Race  X    As above 

Religion/Belief  X    As above 

Sex  X    As above 

Sexual orientation  X    As above 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 

language  

 X    Proposal is to improve the external appearance of building 
only and has no impact on the use of language 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 

favourably than English  

 X    As above 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 

know 

Impact 

H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  

How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 X  
  Proposal is to improve the external appearance of building 

only and has no impact on local biodiversity. 

To promote the 

resilience of 
 X  

  Proposal is to improve the external appearance of building 

only and has no impact on the resilience of ecosystems. 

T
udalen20



3 

 

ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 

the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 

alleviation, etc.  

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):  

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 

supports the long term well-being of 

people  

X  The proposed improvement to the external appearance of 23 Church Place 
will improve the appearance of Neath town centre in the long-term and so 

improve the quality of life for those that use it. 

Integration -  how the initiative 

impacts upon our wellbeing 

objectives  

X  The proposed work supports business to grow the local economy and 
attract new investment to the area. (NPTCBC Corporate Plan 2019-2022 

3.1.3) 

Involvement -  how people have 

been involved in developing the 

initiative  

 X The design changes to the building were selected by its owner in 
consideration of the enjoyment of the building by its potential users. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 

with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

 X The project is not of sufficient scope or scale to require the involvement of 
other services or organisations. 

Prevention -  how the initiative will 

prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

X  The proposal will reduce the rate at which the building will deteriorate in 

condition and appearance, as well as contribute towards reducing the rate 
at which the overall appearance of Neath Conservation Area deteriorates in 

condition and appearance. Potentially the people that use an area will treat 
it better, in terms of reduced rates of vandalism, graffiti and litter, if they 
consider the quality of their environment to be good or improving. The 

proposal will improve the safety of the general public walking around the 

T
udalen21



4 

 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):  

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  √ 

Reasons for this conclusion    

The proposal is to grant fund part of the cost of external improvement to a single building. The initiative embraces sustainable 

development by improving the condition and appearance of the built environment, supporting business to grow the local economy 
and attract new investment to the area. The initiative does not, however, have a significant impact on any specific group of people 
so a full impact assessment is not required. 

 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 

 

property, as the render was breaking off of the building becoming a 
potential hazard to their health. 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Nicola Jane Bulcraig Strategic Development Officer 30.09.2021 

Signed off by  Simon Brennan Head of Property & Regeneration 30.09.2021 

T
udalen22



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 
 

Friday 22
nd

 October, 2021 
 

Report of the Head of Property and Regeneration  
– S. Brennan 

 
Matter for Information  
 
Wards Affected: 
All Wards 
 
Covid-19 Grant Support for Local Businesses from March 2020 to 
Present.  
 
Purpose of the Report: 
To update members on the activities of the Economic Development Service 
in processing Covid-19 financial assistance to local businesses from March 
2020 to August 2021.  
 
Executive Summary: 

 Between April and end June 2020, supported the Non Domestic Rates 
Team to deliver £40,317,000 of grants to 3,119 businesses, directly 
supporting 855 applicants, and bringing 400 new premises into rating.  
 

 Over the last 14 months delivered nine discretionary grants on behalf of 
Welsh Government to the value of £2,390,500, awarded to 1,151 
successful applicants. In total, 1,001 businesses applied and 1,723 
applications were processed. 
 

 Re-established strong working relationship with Welsh Government, 
which will be ongoing as we move into recovery.  
 

Tudalen23

Eitem yr Agenda7



 Established strong working relationship with other Local Authority 
Economic Development Teams across Wales. 
 

 Strengthened existing working relationships with other sections 
internally – NNDR, Finance, Licensing, and Environmental Health & 
Trading Standards. 
 

 Engaged with our foundational economy businesses, who would not 
normally seek support from the Economic Development Service and 
developed a good understanding of their operations. 
 

 Identified ways in which to improve and target the service’s support for 
foundational economy businesses.  
 

 Successfully audited on two of the grants delivered and found to have 
robust controls in place.  

 
Background: 
 
1. Leading up to the first national lockdown in March 2020 when there 

was uncertainty around the pandemic it became clear, through 
constant phone calls and emails, that businesses would look to the 
Economic Development Service for information, advice and support.  
 

2. Over the last 17 months, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a huge 
effect on our local businesses. The necessary forced closures during 
lockdowns and the impact of restrictions outside of lockdowns 
resulted in a sustained loss of income, and uncertainty whether many 
of our businesses would be able to recover and survive. 
 

3. In early April 2020, three members of the Economic Development 
Team were made available to support the Business Rates Team to 
deliver the first round of their grants programme. This continued until 
the end of June, and then, over the following 14 months, they 
delivered nine rounds of discretionary grants on behalf of Welsh 
Government. These funds have been invaluable in assisting local 
businesses to survive through the pandemic.  
 

4. The Team prioritised delivering such support whilst fulfilling their 
usual roles on a reactive basis. They willingly worked weekends, over 
bank holidays and postponed leave to ensure that local businesses 
received the support they needed as promptly as possible.  

Tudalen24



 
5. Both UK and Welsh Government responded by providing a range of 

financial assistance throughout the period including HMRC’s Self-
Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) and Job Retention 
Scheme (Furlough) programmes; favourable termed loans through 
the High Street Banks and the Development Bank of Wales; Non-
Domestic Rate Grants; and a range of discretionary grants. 
 

6. There is no doubt that the availability of this unprecedented financial 
support ensured that many businesses were able to survive the 
pandemic and its lockdowns and ongoing restrictions.  

 
7. On a positive note, many businesses adapted well to the impact of 

the restrictions, remodelling their business operations, providing new 
services, etc. Consequently, moving forward, we anticipate that many 
of these changes and more will need to become permanent and 
further investment will be required to support this. 
 

Supporting NNDR Team 
 
Soon after the announcement of the UK-wide lockdown in late March 2020, 
the Welsh Government announced that it would provide Non-Domestic 
Rates (NDR) grants for businesses registered and paying business rates 
before 20

th
 March 2020.  

 
Businesses had to be operating in the retail leisure and hospitality sectors, 
be in receipt of Small Business Rates Relief, or be eligible for charitable or 
Community Amateur Sports Club (CASC) relief. Set grant levels of £10,000 
or £25,000 were available. The grant was open for applications until 30

th
 

June 2020. 
 
In early April 2020, the Economic Development Team worked with 
colleagues in NDR to deal with the huge volume of email and telephone 
enquiries they were receiving. The role evolved as new circumstances 
came to light and we:   
 
 Verified individuals who had been unable to access their application 

letter, providing them with their unique PIN number and the link to the 
on-line application.  

 

 Advised individuals, who should have been the registered account 
holder for NDR, what information they needed to provide to register. 

Tudalen25



This occurred where a tenancy had changed and the NDR Team not 
updated. 

 

 Advised individuals whose premises were not in rating to contact the 
Valuation Office and what information they needed to provide. This 
resulted in over 400 new business premises registering on our rating 
system. 

 

 Contacted those businesses that had failed to apply, established their 
circumstances and advised accordingly. Many businesses in receipt of 
Small Business Rates Relief, who as a result did not pay rates, did not 
believe they were eligible. 

 

 Supported individuals having difficulty making their application or using 
the on-line system. 

 

 Fielded general queries e.g. confirming receipt of applications, grant 
payments made, future grant support, etc.  

 

 Advised of other funding options for those not eligible for the NDR 
support.  

 
This collaborative approach between the NDR and Economic Development 
teams not only strengthened the working relationship between the teams, 
but also enabled the NDR team move quickly in delivering essential 
emergency payments to our local businesses. In total, the NDR team 
processed 3,119 grants totalling £40,317,000, with the Economic 
Development Team supporting 855 individual applicants.  
 
In processing the discretionary grants on behalf of Welsh Government, the 
working relationship continued. For example, throughout the process, both 
teams discussed and referred applications to the relevant scheme to 
ensure businesses received the support they needed. Recent audits of the 
process confirm the effective working between the teams.  
 
This was a very stressful time for both teams. Behind every application 
were individuals who were facing a very uncertain future for themselves 
and their families. All were losing personal income with many having 
responsibility for employees too, yet having no idea how long the lockdown 
would last and what impact this would have on the viability of their 
business.  
 

Tudalen26



The Teams dealt with individuals displaying a range of emotions either in 
emails or in telephone conversations. In addition to providing the necessary 
advice and information, we as a matter of course took on a pastoral role, 
listening, and giving reassurance and encouragement as needed.  
 
The Economic Development team communications with applicants were 
thus extensive as a result, with over 3,500 emails exchanged, in addition to 
many telephone conversations.   
 
Grants Processed  
 
In June 2020, the Welsh Government, through the Welsh Local 
Government Association (WLGA), informed all councils that it was planning 
to introduce a grant that it wanted the local authorities to deliver on its 
behalf.  
 
This was the first of nine discretionary grants delivered jointly over the next 
14 months.  
 
Appendix 1 provides details on the individual grants processed by the 
Team, including their target audience, key criteria and time-scales. 
 
In summary overall, the Team processed 1,723 applications from 1,001 
individual businesses awarding £2,390,500 in grants.  
 

Grant No 
Applications 

Value of Grants 
Awarded 

Start Up Grant 91 £  80,000 
Freelancer 1 116 £245,000 
Firebreak Lockdown 351 £491,000 
Restrictions Business Fund 408 £708,000 
Extended Restrictions Business 
Fund 

485 £584,000 

Freelancer 2 77 £192,500 
Freelancer 3 40 £  22,500 
Economic Resilience Fund 4 140 £  57,500 
Economic Resilience Fund 5 15 £  10,000 

Total: 1,723 £2,390,500 
 
Delivering the above has helped re-establish a strong working relationship 
between Welsh Government and Local Authorities going forward. The 
Economic Development Team is now working with Welsh Government on 

Tudalen27



the delivery of a Business Recovery Grant, due to be launched in late 
September 2021. 

 
In addition, Appendix 2 provides more detail on our relationship with the 
Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and Welsh Government as 
part of delivering this programme of support as well as the type of 
applicants we dealt with. 
 
Findings on the local business community 
 
Through processing these grants, the Economic Development Team has 
gained a better understanding of Neath Port Talbot’s foundational economy 
businesses. It was clear that pre-Covid there was a thriving economy 
providing basic local services, such as hair and beauty, domestic trades, 
hospitality, transport, etc.  
 
Most businesses we engaged with were sole business owners with no 
employees. The length of time they had been trading ranged from those 
who started a business during the pandemic to those established for many 
years.  
 
From the outset, it was clear that some businesses were better placed to 
survive the pandemic. As noted earlier, many ‘businesses’ were surviving 
week to week and had no financial contingency to fall back on.  
 
The turnover of the businesses varied considerably and indicated that for 
some their ‘business’ was probably part-time, or a top-up to the household 
income, as their turnover was well below the living wage.    
 
In many cases, we found the applicant’s approach to running a business 
was haphazard with poor financial management, record keeping, etc. The 
majority used their personal bank account for business purposes, rather 
than having a separate business bank account. This made it difficult to 
identify business income in assessing applications.  
 
Further, of those businesses that operated primarily on a cash basis, many 
were unable to evidence their income, as this did not go through their bank 
and they did not keep records of receipts.  
 
To confirm the business was operating, we did searches for them on the 
Internet and checked the various social media platforms. On the one hand, 
there were a few, who had no obvious presence. These were mainly 

Tudalen28



businesses with small repeat customer bases, those established for many 
years, or who gained their work through word of mouth recommendation.   
 
Of those businesses that did have a presence on social media, some were 
very active throughout the lockdowns periods, engaging with their customer 
base, whereas others did very little.  
 
Individuals had issues with applying due to poor IT skills. Surprising, a 
number of applications were hand written, some only had access to a 
mobile phone to make an application or relied on others to help them make 
their application and provide the required evidence.    
 
It was also clear that many businesses the team engaged with had 
received very little, if any, business advice and support before starting their 
ventures. This perhaps explains in part the general lack of awareness of by 
many businesses of the funding available despite the extensive marketing 
campaigns of both Welsh Government and the local authorities.  

 

From the above, we recognise that going forward into recovery we need to 
tailor support more effectively towards this sector, to address the issues 
identified. However, due to GDPR, we are unable to use the details we hold 
for applicants to contact them directly. 
 
We therefore plan to enhance our start-up offering to support a more 
business minded approach for new businesses from the outset by:  
 
 Adding information to packs provided at our pre-start Enterprise Club 

meetings on how essential advice services and how important it is to 
attend events such as Welsh Government’s “Taking the Plunge” 
business start-up course before launching their business. 
 

 Making it a requirement for our Innov8 Start-up Grant that applicants 
must have a business bank account.  
 

 Undertake more frequent monitoring of our new start-ups (especially 
throughout the first 18 months) to check on progress, business 
processes used, etc. and advise accordingly. 
 
 

 Hold drop-in advice and information sessions across the County 
(including our valley communities) to engage with existing businesses 
based from home. 
 

Tudalen29



 Work more closely with community-based organisations to promote the 
services the Economic Development Team can offer home-based 
businesses.   

 
Has the support made a difference to our local businesses?  
 
In a broader context, many businesses have adapted to the ongoing 
circumstances, and have been actively seeking new ways to generate an 
income and maintain their businesses.  
 
While there is no doubt that many of these changes will become 
permanent, we do anticipate that demand for investment funding will grow 
considerably over the coming years, as to achieve longer-term 
sustainability businesses will need to think more innovatively. 
 
The following are a few of the comments we received from successful 
applicants.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
‘To “whom it may concern”, I would like to thank you for the 
support you have given and accepting my application for the 
start-up grant. 

 
It is very much appreciated.’ Sylvia 
 
‘Thank you so much. This means so much in this stressful 
time. Allison’ 

 
‘Thank you so much for letting me know that my application for 

the Restriction Business grant from Neath Port Talbot Council, 
has been approved.  
 
It really will be a big help in sustaining my business in these 
difficult times and please pass on my sincere thanks to all 
involved. 
 
Warm regards and best wishes, Brian’ 

 
 

 

Tudalen30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Result of Recent Audits 
 
Internal Audit approached the Team on 23

rd
 March 2021 and advised that 

the Firebreak Lockdown Grant was to be audited. As background, we 
provided a list of applicants; information on the grant criteria; what checks 
were in place to confirm eligibility; details of our processes; a sample 
checklist and minutes of the funding panel meetings.  
 
On 12

th
 April, we provided a sample of 45 applications (35 were successful 

applicants and 10 unsuccessful). For each, Audit required all information 
including any emails where the sample’s application form was incomplete.   
 
The Executive Summary of the Audit Report stated: 
 

‘Testing undertaken on 45 grant applications made in relation to the 
Lockdown Discretionary confirmed that 35 successful grant 
applications and 10 declined applications had been administered in 
line with Welsh Government Guidance.  
 

 
Hopefully things will get back to normal soon. Laura’ 
 
‘I just wanted to say a MASSIVE Thank You for approving my 
application for the discretionary grant. It is very, very much 
needed and very much appreciated at this very challenging 
time.  Thank you once again. 
 
Kind regards, Christian.’  
 

‘Thank you very much for all your help.  
 
This is such great news! If you are ever in one of the markets, 
come over for a bag on us! 
 
Thank you again, James.’  
 
‘That is fantastic news! Thank you so much for accepting my 
application. I’m so appreciative of the grant, and thank you for 
offering continued support to us and little businesses.   
 
 

 

Tudalen31



A further 100 grant applications were checked against the Academy 
NNDR system to determine whether eligibility for the Lockdown 
Discretionary Grant was met. In all successful (95) cases eligibility was 
met, and all unsuccessful (5) cases all were correctly declined due to 
lack of eligibility.  
 
Following this audit substantial assurance can be given that robust 
controls were in place for the administration of this grant.’ 

 
Following on from this, the Business Start Up Grant was audited in 
May/June. As previously, we provided all relevant background information 
on the grant and our processes. The sample was 35 applications (15 
successful applications and 20 unsuccessful).  
 
The information required this time included application forms; acceptance 
emails; copy of the applicants ID, bank statements and proof of trading. For 
clarity, we provided additional relevant information for individual applicants, 
as appropriate. We submitted these between 25

th
 May and 10

th
 June.  

 
Audit requested some additional documents, which we submitted.    
 
The Executive Summary of the Audit Report stated: 
 

‘Testing was undertaken on 15 successful and 20 unsuccessful grant 
applications made in relation to the Start Up Grant. In all instances 
tested the applications had been administered in line with Welsh 
Government Guidance.  
 
Following this audit substantial assurance can be given that robust 
controls were in place for the administration of this grant.’ 

 
The Wales Audit Office requested information on one applicant to the 
Restrictions Business Fund. Similarly, we provided background narrative 
on our processes and the sample evidence requested. As of yet, no 
feedback has been received.  
 
Moving towards Recovery 
 
During the processing of the last round of grant funding, Welsh 
Government said that this would be the last of their emergency funds. 
However, with cases continuing to rise further lockdowns and/or restrictions 
and support for those businesses affected should not be ruled out.  

Tudalen32



 
Despite this, discussions have started regarding Local Authorities 
processing a business development grant to support businesses as they 
recover from the impact of the pandemic. Welsh Government is working 
towards a launch date in late September, although this will depend on rates 
of infection remaining within manageable levels and no further restrictions 
or short-term “Firebreak” lockdown being enforced.  
 
There will be a two-stage application process, the first being a detailed 
Expression of Interest to confirm eligibility and then the application stage 
will assess the viability of the business and proposed project.  
 
Cabinet has recently agreed additional internal funding of £260,000 to 
support local businesses recovering from the pandemic and seeking to 
make investment to promote growth.  
 
Draft processes, criteria, application and assessment documentation have 
been prepared and will be finalised once details and the timing of the 
launch of the Welsh Government scheme are available.  
 
We understand that the Welsh Government grant will be open to all 
businesses and the local authorities will be given the responsibility of 
processing applications from micro businesses employing 1-9 staff.  
 
A briefing paper has been prepared for Members suggesting that we focus 
our efforts on firstly, promoting this Welsh Government grant and 
encouraging businesses to submit applications for relevant projects, before 
launching the Neath Port Talbot Growth and Investment Fund in January 
2022.   
 
Financial Impacts:  
 
No implications.  
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council 
in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
 

Tudalen33



The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth assessment 
is not required.  A summary is included below and the full assessment is 
enclosed at Appendix 3. 
 
The processing of Covid-19 financial assistance to local businesses 
throughout the pandemic enabled many to survive a very difficult 
trading period. It helped improve the long-term sustainability of local 
businesses and their ability to continue employing their staff thereby 
preventing large scale redundancies and a substantial increase in 
unemployment rates. The scheme also had a positive effect on the 
local economy in terms of creating a more prosperous and resilient 
environment.  
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
Applications have been received from businesses across many of our 
valley communities. Once the final spreadsheets, amalgamating 
information from all the schemes processed are finalised for Welsh 
Government, we will be in a position to provide a breakdown of the support 
provided.    
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
No implications.  
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
No implications.  
 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
No implications.  
 
Consultation: 
 

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 
 

Recommendations:  
 
Having given due regard to the first stage Integrated Impact Assessment, 
that the report be noted. 
 
 

Tudalen34



Reasons for Proposed Decision:   
N/A 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
N/A 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix 1 – Grants Processed.  
 
Appendix 2 – Additional Details. 
 
Appendix 3 – Integrated Impact Assessment. 
 

List of Background Papers: 
None. 
 
Officer Contact: 
Name: Julie Davies 
Designation: Business Services Co-ordinator 
Email: j.davies1@npt.gov.uk 
Direct dial: 01639 686069 
 
Name: Sarah Fowler 
Designation: Business Services Officer 
Email: s.fowler@npt.gov.uk  
Direct dial: 01639 686066 

Tudalen35

mailto:j.davies1@npt.gov.uk
mailto:s.fowler@npt.gov.uk


  

Appendix 1 – Grants Processed 
Appendix 1 provides details on the individual grants processed, including their target audience, key criteria 
and time-scales.  
 
Common criteria for all the grants were that businesses: 
 

 were based in Wales; and  

 provided the main source of income, i.e. at least 50% for the owner. 
 

There were specific turnover criteria for sole traders and partnerships and for limited companies. 
 

GRANT CRITERIA GRANT 
OPENED 

PROCESSING 
COMPLETED 

GRANT 
VALUE 

Start Up 
Grant 

 New businesses started 1
st 

April 
2019 to 1

st
 March 2020. 

 Turnover of <£50,000  

 Experienced a >50% drop in 
turnover between April and June 
2020.  

  

29
th
 June 2020 

 
First come first 
served until fully 
committed 

9th September 
2020 

£2,500 

Freelancer 
1 

Freelance professionals working in: 
- The Arts 
- Creative industries 
- Arts & Heritage Events 
- Culture & Heritage 

 
Evidential requirements: 

- Proof of ID and address 

5
th

 October 2020  
 
Closed 24th 
November 2020 

 

14th December £2,500 

T
udalen36



- Proof of work and/or work 
cancelled between April 2019 
and July 2020 

- Bank statement 
- UTR number, pay slip or P60 
- CV or LinkedIn account 

Firebreak 
Lockdown 

 Businesses trading prior to 1
st
 

September 2020 
 Forced to close, or 

 Demonstrate an 80% drop in 
turnover for that period 

 
All above plus: 
  

 Been subject to local restrictions 
for three weeks or more up to 
23

rd
 October 2020  

 

28th October 
 
Closed 20th 
November 
 
First come first 
served 

17th December £1,500 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

£2,000 

Restrictions 
Business 
Fund 

 Businesses in all sectors trading 
prior to 1st September 2020 

 Forced to close, OR 

 Experienced a drop in turnover of 
over 40% as a direct result of the 
restrictions introduced in Wales 
from Friday 4

th
 December 

 

Additional criteria applied to self-
catering accommodation: 

21st December 
2020 
 
Closed 7th 
February 2021 
 
First come first 
served 

12th February 
2021 

£2,000 

T
udalen37



 Produce two years trading 
accounts immediately prior to the 
current financial year of the 
business 

 Have been let for at least 140 
days in the financial year 2019-
20 

 Must be primary source of 
income for the owner i.e. at least 
50% 

Extended 
Restrictions 
Business 
Fund 

 Businesses in all sectors trading 
prior to 1st October 2020 

 Forced to close, OR 

 Experienced a drop in turnover of 
over 40% as a direct result of the 
restrictions introduced in Wales 
from Friday 4

th
 December and 

extended on 29
th
 January 2021 

 

Additional criteria applied to self-
catering accommodation: 

 Produce two years trading 
accounts immediately prior to the 
current financial year of the 
business 

 Have been let for at least 140 
days in the financial year 2019-
20 

15
th
 February 

2021 
 
Closed 11

th
 

March 2021 
 
 
First come first 
served 
 

9
th
 April £2,000 T

udalen38



 Must be primary source of 
income for the owner i.e. at least 
50% 

Freelancer 
2 

 Freelancers who received the 
previous round of Freelancer 
funding and who did not apply 
for, or were ineligible for 
discretionary grants to date. 
 

Automatic payment on receipt of 
completed award letter confirming 
self-declaration statements and 
signed.  

 

16th February 
2021 
 
Closed 2nd 
March 2021 
 
Automatic 
payment on 
confirmation of 
eligibility. 

2nd March 
2021 

£2,500 

Freelancer 
3 

 Freelance professionals working 
in: 
- The Arts 
- Creative industries 
- Arts & Heritage Events 
- Culture & Heritage 

 

Remain affected by the Covid-19 
outbreak.   

 

 Total Covid financial support i.e. 
grants, SEISS, JRS for April 
2020-March 2021 did not exceed 
80% of income for April 2019-
March 2020. 

17th May 
 
Closed 1st June 

23rd June 2021 £2,500 

T
udalen39



 

Evidential requirements: 
- Proof of ID and address 
- Income 2019-2020 
- Bank statements January-

March 2021 
- UTR number, pay slip or P60 
- CV or LinkedIn account 

Economic 
Resilience 
Fund 4 

 Businesses in sectors or 
supplying sectors still impacted 
by the ongoing restrictions 

 Trading prior to 4th December 
2020 

 Forced to remain closed by the 
ongoing restrictions between 1

st
 

May and 30
th
 June 2021 

 Unable to open indoors between 
1st May and 17th May 2021 

 A wedding/events venue with 
restricted capacity of 30 (but can 
accommodate greater number in 
normal times) 

 A supply chain business 
generating 60% or more of its 
turnover from businesses 
meeting the above 

 All had to demonstrate a 
reduction in turnover of 60% or 

1st June 2021 
 
Closed 30th 

June 

2nd August 
2021 

£2,500-
£10,000 

 
Dependent on 

business 
activity, 
specific 

circumstances  
and number 
of full-time 
equivalent 

staff 
employed 

T
udalen40



more in May and June 2021 
compared with May and June 
2019, directly attributable to the 
ongoing restrictions 

Economic 
Resilience 
Fund 5 

 Businesses in sectors or 
supplying sectors still impacted 
by the ongoing restrictions 

 Trading prior to 4th December 
2020 

 Forced to remain closed by the 
ongoing restrictions between 1st 
July and 31st August 2021 and 
experienced a drop in turnover 
>60% in the period as a result of 
the ongoing restrictions 

 Dedicated events 
space/attraction impacted by 
social distancing restrictions and 
experienced a drop in turnover 
>60% in the period as a result of 
the ongoing restrictions 

 Other businesses with >60% 
drop in turnover in the period as 
a result of the ongoing 
restrictions since 1

st
 May and 

were unable to open indoors 
between 1

st
 May and 17

th
 May 

2021 

26th July 2021 
 
Closed 9th 
August 2021 

17th August 
2021 

£1,000-
£10,000 

 
Dependent on 

business 
activity, 
specific 

circumstances 
and number 
of full-time 
equivalent 

staff 
employed   

T
udalen41



 A supply chain business 
generating 60% or more of its 
turnover from businesses 
meeting the above and 
experienced a drop in turnover 
>60% in the period. 

 
 
 

T
udalen42



  

APPENDIX 2 – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
This provides the detail on areas briefly touched on in the body of the 
report. These are:  
 
 Working relationship with Welsh Government. 

 Internal processes - outlines the significant work involved in developing 
and setting up the necessary internal processes and the issues faced by 
the Team.  

 Applicants – the types of businesses supported and how the personal 
challenges they faced influenced the processing of their applications. 

 Grant administration and Welsh Government Returns - ongoing work 
required.  

 

Working relationship with Welsh Government 
As noted, we began working with Welsh Government in June 2020, and 
went on to deliver nine discretionary grants over the next 14 months. The 
WLGA were instrumental in supporting the Local Authority officers and co-
ordinating contact between the two parties.  
 
Prior to the launch of each grant, regular meetings between the relevant 
Welsh Government Officers and LA Officers responsible for delivering the 
grants took place to: 
 
 Inform the LAs of the reasoning for and criteria of the proposed grant 

scheme, time-scales, application process, etc. 
 
 Discuss and agree application forms and guidance notes. 
 
 Respond to any questions arising. 
 
During the grant processing period, the meetings continued to: 
 
 Discuss specific application queries, so seeking to ensure consistency 

pan Wales. 
 
 Monitoring volumes and types of applications. 
 
 Respond to any general questions arising. 
 
For example, Welsh Government’s Guidance Notes advised applicants that 
if their application form was incomplete, or the evidence required not 

Tudalen43



submitted it would be declined. In light of the circumstances in which 
individuals were making an application, officers felt that this would be 
extremely unfair and following discussions, Welsh Government left it up to 
individual authorities to decide what action to take.  
 
Consequently, the approach of our Economic Development Team was to 
make every effort to support all applicants so they had the best 
opportunity of success.  

 
Again, for one grant, the Welsh Government changed their view on the 
eligibility of an applicant group. This meant that we had to reconsider 
applications, going back to the applicants for additional information in order 
to award the grant.   
 
The regular communication between LA Officers was invaluable in 
agreeing a common approach outside of the meetings with Welsh 
Government.  
 
For many years, the working relationship between relevant Welsh 
Government Officers and Economic Development Officers at Local 
Authority level has been extremely limited. Welsh Government chose to 
deliver business support through its Business Wales service, contracted 
out to suppliers. Events of the last 18 months clearly showed that it could 
not deliver the support businesses needed at this time, without engaging 
with Local Authorities.  
 
As noted, this is set to continue with the delivery of a business recovery 
grant that Welsh Government is planning. Ideally, it will continue beyond 
the demands of the current situation and the value of the local support to 
businesses delivered by Councils across Wales recognised.  
 
 
Internal Processes 
When the First Minister made any announcement of new support for 
businesses, we always had a short lead-time to undertake the necessary 
internal preparations. In most cases, this was less than a week.  
 
The resulting demand on our IT Support Services meant that we were only 
able to process two of the nine grants via an electronic application form 
linked to our business database. Applications for the remaining seven 
grants were received as e-mail attachments and this involved a lot more 
administration for the team.  

Tudalen44



 
All grants were promoted via our website and across the different social 
media platforms. 
 
Throughout the Team adopted a consistent approach for processing 
applications: 
 
 Compiled a Log of applicants to include a diary of key events – this 

varied depending on the nature of the grant processed. Many of the 
grants were on a first come first served basis.  

 
 Developed a checklist covering key criteria, information requirements 

and wider eligibility criteria against which to confirm submission and 
assess applications. 

 
 At regular funding panel meetings, we reviewed assessed applications. 

This enabled discussion, particularly in the early days of each grant, to 
agree a consistent approach to the interpretation of WG’s criteria and 
other issues identified. Thus, decision-making was collective rather than 
the onus being on an individual officer’s interpretation.  

 

 Minutes were prepared and signed off for each funding panel before 
notifying applicants of the outcome. 

 
 Transcribing of applicant bank details from an application form to a 

spreadsheet for Finance, was completed by one officer and checked by 
a second before being sent to Finance for payment.  

 
Established relationships with the teams in Licensing, Environmental 
Health & Trading Standards, supported us to ensure that applicants held 
the necessary licensing for their activities and that we did not support any 
business that had infringed Covid regulations.  
 
The Team worked well together to prepare the above and complete the 
processing of the grants whilst getting to grips with working from home. 
Additional members of the Economic Development Team supported 
delivery by attending the funding panel meetings, marketing and promoting 
the grants, liaising with unsuccessful applicants and adjudicating on their 
case, and preparing and checking payment details for successful 
applicants. 
 

Tudalen45



As noted in the report, on four occasions, the Team were still processing 
the current grant as the next launched and thus had to manage the above 
preparations for the new grant, whilst still meeting the time constraints 
imposed for processing individual applications.  
 
Applicants 
The range of grants processed enabled the Economic Development Team 
to engage with many businesses that would not normally approach the 
service for support. The vast majority were businesses run from home 
including mobile hairdressers and beauticians, domestic trades, gardening 
services, on-line retail, taxi services, market traders, freelance musicians 
and singers, financial services, etc.  
 
Individuals and business owners applying for the various funds were under 
significant financial pressure and uncertain whether their businesses would 
survive. A number also had responsibility for employees, adding to their 
concerns.  
 
With many of the grants offered on a first come first served basis, the 
pressure to get an application in meant that applicants did not read the 
Guidance Notes and many applications were rushed and therefore 
incomplete. As noted earlier, Welsh Government took the advice of LA 
Officers and agreed that individual authorities adopt their own approach to 
this issue.  
 
In Neath Port Talbot, we initially agreed to return the completed application 
and attach a copy of the Guidance Notes and ask the applicant to review 
and resubmit their application within 48 hours. However, this did not 
resolve the matter.  
 
Therefore, we then replied to individuals and detailed the information 
missing from their application form and the required supporting evidence 
they needed to submit. Again a 48-hour deadline for return given.  
Regardless of this approach, applicants rarely submitted the missing 
information in full, or submitted the wrong information. Thus, officers were 
often engaged in protracted communications to give the applicant the best 
opportunity to make a successful application. As a result, we dealt with 
over 6,000 emails as well as telephone conversations.  
 
As restrictions began to ease, the criteria for the grants became stricter and 
necessitated more evidence from applicants. This again increased the 
extent of our engagement with them to confirm their eligibility.  

Tudalen46



 
The reasons for the tightening of the criteria by Welsh Government were 
twofold. Firstly, they recognised that businesses were being over supported 
i.e. had received more in support than they would normally earn and 
secondly, to focus the funding on those businesses and sectors that 
continued to be most adversely affected by the ongoing restrictions.  
 
As noted previously, we were often dealing with individuals in or facing 
significant financial difficulty. This was particularly acute at the outset with 
the UK lockdown, when businesses were forced to close and did not know 
when they would be able to open again. 
 
We found that many lifestyle type businesses operate on a week-to-week 
basis, meaning that without support, they would not be able to meet 
personal living expenses. Early and prompt delivery of grant support was 
thus critical for the survival of many. 
 
 
Grant Administration and Welsh Government Returns 
With the overlapping of the timing of the announcement and launch of the 
grants, we have been unable to complete the administration of applicants’ 
submissions, as we would ideally like. Other than the two online 
applications linked to our client database, all other grant application 
documentation has been submitted by email as attachments.  
 
We have ensured that the applicant emails are secure and are gradually 
saving the relevant documentation to client folders on our shared drive. 
Once complete, these can be password protected. 
 
As the processing of the applications was on behalf of Welsh Government, 
their privacy notice applied.  
 
We have to provide returns for both Welsh and UK Governments.  Welsh 
Government require a spreadsheet for each grant populated for all fields in 
the application form, for both successful and unsuccessful applications. 
Whilst the online applications make this easy to do, the spreadsheets for 
the other grants have to be populated manually. This will be a significant 
and time-consuming task, which will take many months to complete.  
 

Tudalen47



1 
 

Integrated Impact Assessment - First Stage 
 

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language 

as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of 
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge. 

The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second 

stage).    
 

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them. 
 
When completing the first step you must have regard to the following:  

 Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, rai sed? (For example, 
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disab led 
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools) 

 Is there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment 
opportunities for disabled people).  

 Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affec ted or where the 

language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a 
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;   

 Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent 
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being;  changes 
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers) 

1.  Provide a description and summary of the initiative.  

 Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative. 
   
2.  Identify who will be affected by the initiative.  
 If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment   
 If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 – 

sustainable development principle.   

  
3. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people  who 

share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community. 

T
udalen48



2 
 

 

Some things to consider include:  

 transport issues  

 accessibility  

  customer service 

  cultural sensitivity 

 financial implications   

  loss of jobs    

 
Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative):  

 High – likely to be highly affected by the initiative   

 Medium - likely to be affected in some way  

 Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way 

 Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown 

 
You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision.  
 

4.  Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunitie s to 

use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English.  

 Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3. 

The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4. 
  

5. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c of the Well -

being of Future Generations Act 2015. 

 
 Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working: 

 Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people  

 Integration -  how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives  

 Involvement -  how people have been involved in developing the initiative  

 Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions;  

 Prevention -  how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse  

T
udalen49



3 
 

 

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and 
an explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given.  

 

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included.  
 

 Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will 
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately.  

 

 A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.  
 

 Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director.  
 
 

 
  

 
  
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

T
udalen50



4 
 

Appendix 3   Impact Assessment - First Stage  
 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: 

The processing of Covid-19 financial assistance to local businesses, on behalf of Welsh Government, throughout the 
pandemic including lockdown periods and times of restrictive trading (March 2020 to August 2021). 

 

Service Area:   Regeneration & Economic Development 

Directorate:       Environment 

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users (local businesses) X  

Staff  X 

Wider community X  

Internal administrative process only   X 

 

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age   X    Activities focused on processing grant payment to local 
businesses affected by Covid lockdown and/or 

restrictions to their ability to trade.  

Disability   X    As above 

Gender Reassignment  X    As above 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  X    As above 

Pregnancy/Maternity  X    As above 

T
udalen51



5 
 

Race  X    As above 

Religion/Belief  X    As above 

Sex  X    As above 

Sexual orientation  X    As above 

 

 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 

know 

Impact 

H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 

How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

 X    Activities focused on processing grant payment to local 
businesses affected by Covid lockdown and/or restrictions to 
their ability to trade. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

 X    As above 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 

know 

Impact 

H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  

How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 X  
  Activities focused on processing grant payment to local 

businesses affected by Covid lockdown and/or restrictions to 
their ability to trade. 

To promote the 
resilience of 

 X    Activities focused on processing grant payment to local 
businesses affected by Covid lockdown and/or restrictions to 

T
udalen52



6 
 

ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 

the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 

alleviation, etc.  

their ability to trade. 

 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):  

 

 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 

supports the long term well-being of 
people  

X  Grant payments enabled local businesses to continue to survive throughout 

the pandemic thereby improving their long-term sustainability and the 
continued employment of their employees.  

Integration -  how the initiative 

impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

X  Financial support impacts on the sustainability of local businesses and 

helps create a more prosperous and resilient local economy.  

Involvement -  how people have 

been involved in developing the 
initiative  

 X The scheme was developed by the Welsh Government. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 

with other services/organisations to 

find shared sustainable solutions 

X  The grants were delivered in collaboration with Welsh Government and 
WLGA. Experiences and examples of best practice were shared with all 

other 22 local authorities at monthly virtual meetings.  

Prevention -  how the initiative will 

prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse  

X  The grant payments enabled local businesses to survive throughout the 
lockdown periods. In addition, the furlough scheme helped prevent large 

scale redundancies and a substantial increase in unemployment rates. 

T
udalen53



7 
 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):  

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  √ 

Reasons for this conclusion    

The processing of Covid-19 financial assistance to local businesses throughout the pandemic enabled many to survive a very 
difficult trading period. It helped improve the long-term sustainability of local businesses and their ability to continue employing 

their staff thereby preventing large scale redundancies and a substantial increase in unemployment rates. The scheme also had a 
positive effect on the local economy in terms of creating a more prosperous and resilient environment.  

 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 

 

 

  Name Position Date 

Completed by Julie Davies 
Business Support 
Coordinator  

13.10.2021 

Signed off by  Simon Brennan Head of Service/Director  14.10.2021 

T
udalen54



  

 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

 
22

nd
 October 2021 

 
 Joint Report of  

The Head of Planning and Public Protection – C Morris 
The Head of Property and Regeneration – S Brennan 

 
Matter for Monitoring 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
Report Title: Key Performance Indicators 2019/2020 – Quarter 1 
(1

st
 April 2021 – 30

th
 June 2021) 

 
 
Purpose of the Report:  
 
To report quarter 1 performance management data for the period 1 
April 2021 to 30 June 2021 for Regeneration and Sustainable 
Development Cabinet Board.  This will enable the Regeneration and 
Sustainable Development Cabinet Board and Scrutiny Members to 
discharge their functions in relation to performance management. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
A list of quarter 1 Corporate Plan KPI’s with progress comments on 
each indicator are attached as appendix 1, these do not include those 
KPI’s collected on an annual basis, these will be reported in quarter 

Tudalen55

Eitem yr Agenda8



4. The full suite of Corporate Plan KPI’s can be found in the 
Corporate Plan 2018-2022. 
 
KPI’s that have improved on or achieved target are GREEN status, 
KPI’s that have not achieved target but performance is within 5% are 
AMBER status and KPI’s that are 5% or more below target are RED 
status. 
 
Where available, performance indicators report quarter 1 target and 3 
years of quarter 1 data for comparison. 
 
Appendix 2 provides quarter 1 information for Compliments and 
Complaints data, collected in line with the Council’s Comments, 
Compliments & Complaints Policy for Cabinet and relevant Cabinet 
Board purviews. 
 
Appendices 1 and 2 are new reports from the Corporate Performance 
Management System (CPMS), which went live in August 2018. 
 
Background: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The performance described in the report is being delivered against a 
challenging financial backdrop.  
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact 
Assessment as this report is for monitoring / information purposes. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts: 
 
No implications. 

Tudalen56

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1454
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1454


Workforce Impacts 

 
1. The progress described in the Quarter 1 report was achieved 

against a backdrop of an unprecedented emergency situation. This 
has involved a step change in workforce flexibility and innovation 
underpinned by enhanced use of data and digital technology. A 
significant number of the Council’s workforce were redeployed 
temporarily to new duties. 

 

Legal Impacts: 
 
This report is prepared under: 

1) The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and discharges the 

Council’s duties to “make arrangements to secure continuous 

improvement in the exercise of its functions”  

2) Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

3) The Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Constitution 

requires each cabinet committee to monitor quarterly budgets and 

performance in securing continuous improvement of all the 

functions within its purview.  

Risk Management Impacts: 
 
Failure to produce a compliant report within the timescales can lead 
to non-compliance with our Constitution.  Also, failure to have robust 
performance monitoring arrangements could result in poor 
performance going undetected.  
 
Consultation 

Tudalen57



There is no requirement under the Constitution for external 
consultation on this item. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Key Performance Indicators 2021/2022 – Quarter 1 
Performance (1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021) 
 
Appendix 2 – Compliments and Complaints information 2021/2022 – 
Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021) 

 
Officer Contact: 

Joy Smith, Road Safety and Business Performance Manager. 
Telephone: 01639 686581. E-Mail: j.smith@npt.gov.uk 

 

Tudalen58

mailto:j.smith@npt.gov.uk


Neath Port Talbot Council
Performance Indicators

Print Date: 03-Sep-2021

Appendix 1 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board -  Key Performance Indicators -  
quarter 1  ( 1st April -  30th June) - 2021/22

T
udalen59



How will we know we are making a difference (01/04/2021 to 30/06/2021)?
PI Title Actual 

19/20
Actual 
20/21

Actual 
21/22

Target 
21/22

Perf. RAG

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION
CP/021 - Number of new business start-up enquiries assisted 88.00 0.00 62.00

Red
CP/042 - PAM/023 - Percentage of food establishments that meet food hygiene standards 93.41 95.00

NA
CP/063 - The number of jobs created/safeguarded as a result of financial support by the local authority 32.00 0.00 70.00

Red
CP/078 - Number of PM10 breaches in the Air Quality Management Area (Port Talbot / Taibach) 3.00 4.00 0.00 9.00

Green
CP/110 - Workways + -  Number of people helped back to work , training  or volunteering 26.00 19.00 25.00 18.00

Green
Workways+ delivery team has supported 25 individuals during the first quarter of 2021/22.  15 of these outcomes are for those going into employment over 16 hours.  
Engagement is increasing but there are still a high number of individuals who feel cautious about progressing into training/volunteering due to Covid.  A number of employability 
support sessions are being delivered online to encourage engagement.  
CP/113- PAM/018 - Percentage of all planning applications determined in time 96.35 97.16 90.00 95.00

Red
CP/120 - Extent of land under Council ownership or control that is protected and/or under appropriate management 
for biodiversity: Part A: Area (hectares)

179.39 179.40

NA
Note: target for 2021/22 to increase on baseline. 179.40 added for RAG calculation.

CP/121 - Extent of land under Council ownership or control that is protected and/or under appropriate management 
for biodiversity: Part B: Length (km)

22.79 22.80

NA
Note: target for 2021/22 to increase on baseline. 22.80 added for RAG calculation.

PI/280 - PAM/019 - Percentage of planning appeals dismissed 0.00 100.00 50.00 0.00

Green

Page 2 of 5

Neath Port Talbot Council Date From: 01-Apr-2021 Date To: 30-Jun-2021

T
udalen60



PI Title Actual 
19/20

Actual 
20/21

Actual 
21/22

Target 
21/22

Perf. RAG

PI/366 - PLA/M002 - Planning - Average time taken from receipt of application to date decision is issued - days 50.21 61.21 81.97 90.00

Green
PI/367 - PPN/001ii - Percentage of high risk businesses that were liable to a programmed inspection that were 
inspected for Food Hygiene

31.18 0.00

NA

PI/370 - BCT/007 – The percentage of ‘full plan’ applications approved first time. 97.22 100.00 100.00 95.00

Green
Maximum performance achieved in difficult circumstances. Demonstrating that officers have adapted well to a hybrid way of working.

PI/371 - BCT/004 – Percentage of Building Control ‘full plan’ applications checked within 15  working days during the 
year.

100.00 100.00 97.83 96.00

Green
Excellent performance achieved in difficult circumstances. Demonstrating that officers have adapted well to a hybrid way of working.

PI/372 - PLA/004d - The percentage of all other planning applications determined during the year within 8 weeks 91.04 84.78 78.08 81.00

Amber
PI/373 - PLA/M004 - The percentage of major planning applications determined during the year within 8 weeks 0.00 0.00 40.00

Red
PI/374 - PLA/004c - The percentage of householder planning applications determined during the year within 8 weeks 96.34 81.97 74.78 97.00

Red
PI/375 - PLA/004b - The percentage of minor planning applications determined during the year within 8 weeks 79.07 73.53 54.90 80.00

Red
PI/376 - PLA/002 - The percentage of applications for development determined during the year that were approved 98.96 94.33 95.42 95.00

Green
PI/380 - PLA/M001 – Planning - Average time taken from receipt of application to validation of application – days. 8.18 12.64 15.63 15.00

Amber
PI/430 - Percentage of private water supplies where a risk assessment has been carried out in accordance with 
drinking water standards

50.00 0.00

NA

Page 3 of 5

Neath Port Talbot Council Date From: 01-Apr-2021 Date To: 30-Jun-2021

T
udalen61



PI Title Actual 
19/20

Actual 
20/21

Actual 
21/22

Target 
21/22

Perf. RAG

PI/456 - Number of enterprise events held 3.00

NA
PI/457- Number of completed training weeks for apprenticeship, traineeships and work experience 12.00 0.00

NA
PI/458 - Number of visitors to Neath Town Centre 1092386.00 0.00

NA
PI/459- Bring forward high quality office and light industrial space for inward investment expansion      

PI/462 - Number of business enquires assisted resulting in advice, information or financial support being given to 
existing companies through Business Services

131.00 0.00

NA
PI/464 - Number of tourism operators Supported by the Council 18.00 24.00 4.00 0.00

Green
1 new and 1 proposed accommodation providers were assisted. 2 existing accommodation providers were also assisted with queries relating to compliance with current Covid-19 
guidance. 
PI/465 - Number of Destination Management Plan actions delivered. 7.00 5.00 6.00 0.00

Green
Actions include compiling a visitor management plan and implementing strategies to manage visitor pressures at key sites.

PI/518 - Trading Standards - Percentage of businesses that were either compliant when visited or brought into 
compliance during the period

84.54 75.00

Green
This is a good result, but will be an anomaly. As the department continues the move to normal intervention, more breaches will be detected and investigation times run on through the 
year
PI/519 -Trading Standards - Percentage of high risk businesses that were liable to a programmed inspection that 
were inspected for Trading Standards & Animal Health

10.20 15.00

Red
Progress on the the inspection programme has been slow, partly due to the systems in place related to covid, but also due to sickness absence and maternity. The high risk inspection 
target is achievable and will be met by March 2022.
PI/520 - Trading Standards- Redress obtained for consumers or victims of crime by service actions 31000.00

Page 4 of 5

Neath Port Talbot Council Date From: 01-Apr-2021 Date To: 30-Jun-2021

T
udalen62



PI Title Actual 
19/20

Actual 
20/21

Actual 
21/22

Target 
21/22

Perf. RAG

This large sum is a one off payment following the the court directed compensation related to SDG / Crystal Style which was awarded in April 2021.

Page 5 of 5

Neath Port Talbot Council Date From: 01-Apr-2021 Date To: 30-Jun-2021

T
udalen63



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Neath Port Talbot Council
Performance Indicators

Print Date: 03-Sep-2021

Appendix 2 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - Compliments and Complaints - Quarter 1  ( 
1st April -  30th June) - 2021/22

T
udalen65



How will we know we are making a difference (01/04/2021 to 30/06/2021)?
PI Title Actual 

19/20
Actual 
20/21

Actual 
21/22

Target 
21/22

Perf. RAG

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION
PI/268 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development -  % of complaints at Stage 1 that were upheld/partially upheld 0.00 0.00 0.00

A total of four Stage 1 complaints were received for this period  none of which  were upheld. Three were for E. Health and one for Estates. This compares with three received for the 
same period last year.

We still have eight complaints outstanding from 2021, seven of which are for E. Health and one for Regeneration.
PI/269 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - % of complaints at Stage 2 that were upheld/partially upheld 50.00 0.00

Only one Stage 2 complaint was received for this period for Planning which was not upheld. This compares to none received for the same period last year.

PI/270 - Regeneration and Sustainable Development - % of complaints dealt with by the Public Services Ombudsman 
that were upheld/partially upheld

0.00

No complaints were investigated by the Ombudsman for this period as was the same for Quarter one last year

PI/271 - Regeneration and sustainable development - number of compliments received from the public 3.00 0.00 2.00

Two compliments were received for this period these being one for E. Health and the other for Planning. This compares with none for the same period last year.

Page 2 of 2

Neath Port Talbot Council Date From: 01-Apr-2021 Date To: 30-Jun-2021

T
udalen66



Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board 

    Immediately following Scrutiny Committees starting at 10am 

Meeting 
Date 

 

Agenda Item Type Contact Officer 

3 December 
2021 
 

Active Travel Network Map (ATNM) Decision Ceri Morris / Lana Beynon 

2021/22 Quarterly Performance – Quarter 2  
 

Monitor Simon Brennan / Ceri Morris 

   
   
   

14 January 
2022 

   
   

   
2021/22 Quarterly Performance – Quarter 3  
 

Monitor Simon Brennan / Ceri Morris 

    
4 March 
2022 
 

   
   
   
 

8 April 2022 
 

   
   
   
   

   
 

T
udalen67

E
item

 yr A
genda9



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen69

Eitem yr Agenda12
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen75

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen179

Eitem yr Agenda13
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen185

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen191

Eitem yr Agenda14
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen199

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen203

Eitem yr Agenda15
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 13, 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen207

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 13, 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen209

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 13, 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	5 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol
	6 Grant Eiddo Masnachol: 23 Maes yr Eglwys, Castell-nedd SA11 3LL
	Appendix 1 - SB CPG 23 Church Place - IIA First Stage Assessment

	7 Cymorth Grant COVID-19 ar gyfer Busnesau Lleol o fis Mawrth 2020 i'r presennol
	8 Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol 2019/2020 - Chwarter 1 (1 Ebrill 2021 i 30 Mehefin 2021)
	APPENDIX 1 RSD QUARTER 1 PI REPORT 2021 2022
	APPENDIX 2 RSD QUARTER 1 COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS REPORT 2021 2022

	9 Blaenraglen Waith 2021/2022
	12 Y Diweddaraf am Brosiect Twnnel y Rhondda
	Appendix 1 Rhondda Tunnel Business Case Report

	13 Cynnig arfaethedig i waredu tir datblygu a adwaenir fel Llain 1, Nant y Cafn, Dulais Road, Blaendulais
	Appendix 2 - SB IIA Disposal of Plot 1 Nant Y Cafn - First Stage Assessment

	14 Cynnig i gwblhau gwaith heb ei orffen yn YGG Pontardawe
	Appendix A - SB IIA First Stage Assessment- Private - YGG Pontardawe

	15 Cynnig arfaethedig i gaffael Tir a Garej Ddomestig ar gyffordd yr A48 â Stryd y D?r, Margam ar gyfer y cynllun llwybr troed/llwybr beicio arfaethedig sy'n cysylltu Eglwys Nunydd a Pharc Dewi Sant, Margam
	Appendix 1 - SB 21-0705 - Plan of Water Street, Margam
	Appendix 2 - SB IIA First Stage Assessment - Water Street scheme - Sayers


